
CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
 
Venue: Town Hall,  

Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham.  S60  2TH 

Date: Monday, 9th July, 2012 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. To determine if the matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with Part 1 (as amended March 2006) of Schedule 
12A to the Local Government Act 1972.  

  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for absence.  
  

 
4. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 25th June, 2012. (Pages 1 - 3) 
  

 
5. Adult Services Revenue Budget Monitoring Report - 2012-13. (Pages 4 - 8) 
  

 
6. Exclusion of the press and the public.  

 
The following items are likely to be considered in the absence of the press and 
public as being exempt under Paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended March 2006) (information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular individual (including 
the Council) and Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter). 

 
7. Review of Enabling Service. (Pages 9 - 16) 
  

 
The Cabinet Member authorised consideration of the following reports received 

after the deadline in order to progress the matters referred to. 
 

 
8. Day Service Review Proposals - Learning Disability Services. (Pages 17 - 21) 
  

 
9. Day Service Review Proposals - Transport Services. (Pages 22 - 32) 
  

 
10. Date and time of the next meeting: -  

 
 
Monday 23rd July, 2012, to start at 10.00 am in the Rotherham Town Hall.   

 

 



CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 25/06/12 10H 
 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
Monday, 25th June, 2012 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Doyle (in the Chair); Councillors Gosling, P. A. Russell and Steele. 

 
H7. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 11TH JUNE, 2012  

 
 Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meetings held on 11th 

June, 2012. 
 
Resolved:-  That, subject to the inclusion of Councillor Steele’s apologies, the 
minutes of the previous meetings held on 11th June, 2012, be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

H8. ADULT SERVICES REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT 2011/12  
 

 Mark Scarrott, Finance Manager (Adult Services) presented the submitted 
report relating to the Revenue Outturn position for Adult Services Department 
within the Neighbourhood and Adult Services Directorate for the financial year 
2011/12. 
 
It was reported that the 2011/12 revised cash limited budget was 
£76,530,053, and the net Outturn for the Service for 2011/12 was an 
underspend of £2,542,580 (variation of -3.32%).  
 
It was an increase in the underspend compared with the last budget 
monitoring report largely due to the impact of the Council-wide moratorium on 
non-essential spend, controlled vacancy management and additional income 
from the NHS. 
 
A summary revenue outturn position for Adult Social Services was given in the 
table within the submitted report.  
 
The appendix to the submitted report detailed the revenue outturn 2011/12 
and the reasons for variance from approved budgets.  The following key 
variations were highlighted:- 
 
Adults General (-£326,000) 

− Slippage from additional funding from the NHS for the further development 
of Services for Carers 

− Moratorium on printing, postages and stationery 
 
Older People’s Services (-£901,000) 

− Additional income from the NHS in the last quarter in respect of support 
for the Winter period and additional funding for Carers 

− Vacant Social Work posts 

− Intermediate Care pooled budget – employee costs 

− Independent sector residential and nursing care – few placements 

− Additional income from transport fees and charges 

− Overspend on Home Care provision 

− Increase in Direct Payment 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



11H CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 25/06/12 

 

 

− Shortfall in income from In House residential care fees 

− Overspend on employee costs 
 
Learning Disabilities (-£552,000) 

− Slippage on developing new Supported Living Schemes 

− Contract efficiency savings 

− Additional income from NHS 

− Vacancies 

− Overspends on Residential and Nursing Care budgets due to additional 
demand for placements and a reduction in Continuing Health Care income 

 
Mental Health Services (-£1,000) 

− Continued increase in uptake on Direct Payments 

− Savings on Community Support budgets 

− Overspends on Out of Hours Service and the use of agency staff 

− Additional income from NHS towards the funding of residential care 
placements 

− Efficiency savings negotiated with Service provider for Supported Living 
 
Physical and Sensory Disabilities (-£340,000) 

− Continued increase in number of clients in receipt of Independent Sector 
Home Care 

− Slippage on new investments to provide alternatives to residential care 

− Efficiency savings on voluntary sector contracts 

− Underspends on Assistive Technology 

− Employee costs 
 
Adult Safeguarding (-£149,000) 

− Vacant posts 
 
Supporting People (-£274,000) 

− Efficiency savings on contracts to enable achievement of 2012-13 agreed 
budget savings 

 
Members present raised a number of issues that were clarified as follows:- 
 

− The increase in the number of Direct Payments was a combination of new 
clients and clients opting to remain with their existing provider rather than 
the provider through the new Framework Agreement 

− Savings in management costs had been achieved through the restructure 

− Rotherham has a positive track record in recruitment to social work posts 
but there are usually vacancies due to retirement or leavers,  

− The late receipt of additional funding from the NHS accounted for a large 
proportion of the underspend 

 
Resolved:- (1)  That staff be thanked for their endeavours in maintaining 
services as far as possible in light of the savings that had had to be made. 
 
(2)  That the unaudited 2011/12 Revenue Outturn report for Adult Services 
be received and noted. 
 

Page 2



CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE - 25/06/12 12H 
 

 

(3)  That a performance monitoring report be submitted to a future meeting. 
 

H9. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 Resolved:-  That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended March 2006) (information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any person (including the Council)). 
 

H10. CONTRACT RENEWAL FOR ANNUAL IT SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE - 
NORTHGATE SOCIAL CARE SYSTEM  
 

 The Cabinet Member received, for information, a report submitted to the 
Deputy Leader on 28th May, 2012 (Minute No. 8 refers), recommending that 
the current contractor delivering annual I.T. support and maintenance be 
awarded a short-time contract of twelve months’ duration whilst a market 
review of ICT case management systems was completed and procurement 
under the EU procurement rules carried out.  
 
Resolved:-  That the report be noted.  
 
 

 

Page 3



 

 
 
1  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 

2  
 

Date: Monday 9 July 2012 

3  Title: Adult Services Revenue Budget Monitoring Report 
2012-13 

4  Directorate : Neighbourhoods and Adult Social Services 

 
5 Summary 
 

This Budget Monitoring Report provides a financial forecast for the Adult 
Services Department within the Neighbourhoods and Adult Services Directorate 
to the end of March 2013 based on actual income and expenditure for the 
period ending May 2012.   

 
The forecast for the financial year 2012/13 at this stage is a balanced 
budget, against an approved net revenue budget of £74.567m.  

 
6 Recommendations 
 

That the Cabinet Member receives and notes the latest financial projection 
against budget for 2012/13.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 5Page 4



 

7 Proposals and Details 
 
7.1 The Current Position  
 

The approved net revenue budget for Adult Services for 2012/13 is £74.567m. 
Included in the approved budget was additional funding for demographic and 
existing budget pressures (£2.294m) together with a number of savings 
(£6.258m) identified through the 2012/13 budget setting process.  

 
7.1.1 The table below summarises the latest forecast outturn against approved  

budgets:-  
 

 
 
Division of Service 

 
Net 
Budget 

 
Forecast 
Outturn 
 

 
 
Variation  
 

 
 
Variation 

 £000 £000 £000 % 

Adults General 3,792 3,767 -25 -0.66 

Older People 33,732 33,694 -38 -0.11 

Learning Disabilities 17,290 17,651 361 2.08 

Mental Health 5,466 5,465 -1 -0.01 

Physical & Sensory 
Disabilities 

6,308 6,146 -162 -2.57 

Adults Safeguarding 698 696 -2 -0.29 

Supporting People 7,281 7,148 -133 -1.83 

     

Total Adult Services 74,567 74,567 0 0 

 
 
7.1.2 The latest year end forecast shows there are a number of underlying budget 

pressures which are being offset by a number of forecast underspends. 
 
The main variations to budget can be summarised as follows: 
 
Adults General, Management & Training (£-25k) 

 
This includes the cross cutting budgets (Workforce planning and training,   
RBT and corporate charges) are forecasting an underspend mainly due 
savings on charges for postages, telephones and printing.  

 
Older People (-£38k) 

 

• Overspend on In-House Residential Care (+£266k) due to recurrent 
budget pressure on Part III income.  

• Further increase in demand for Direct Payments over budget (+£868k), 
this includes 65 new clients from independent sector domiciliary care 
who have requested to remain with their current service provider who 
were unsuccessful in the recent tendering of the independent home 
care service. 

Page 5



 

• Overspend on In House Transport (+£71k) due to the approved budget 
savings reduction partially reduced by additional income. 

• Forecast underspend on Enabling Care (-£477k) based on current 
budget and level of service which is under review. 

• An underspend on Independent sector home care (-£258k) after a 
reduction of £660k commissioning and contract savings achieved as 
part of the new framework agreement. However, these budgets require 
review in order to compensate for the shift in service provision to Direct 
payments as mentioned above.  

• An underspend on independent residential and nursing care (-£221k) 
due to 23 less clients than budgeted plus additional income from health 
and property charges. 

• Forecast underspend                                                                                                                              
in respect of slippage in developing dementia services within 
Community Mental Health budgets (-£233k) plus an underspend on 
carers services due to vacancies and slippage in carers breaks (-£53k).   

 
Learning Disabilities (+£361k) 

 

• Overspend on residential care budgets due to loss of income from 
health for 5 clients plus 3 new clients transferred from health (+£92k). 

• Recurrent budget pressure on Day Care transport (+£297k) including 
shortfall in income from charges. 

• Additional high costs placements receiving independent sector day 
care provision (+£58k).  

• Increase in demand for Direct Payments over and above approved 
budget (+£41k). 

• Underspend within independent sector supported living schemes due 
to additional income from health plus use of grant funding (-£128k). 

 
Mental Health (-£1k) 

 

• Projected slight underspend on residential care budget (-£9k). 

• Budget pressure on Direct Payments (+£165k) reduced by slippage in 
developing supported accommodation within Community Support 
Services (-£159k). 

 
Physical & Sensory Disabilities (-£162k) 

 

• Continued Pressure on Independent Sector domiciliary care (+£69k) 
due to continue increase in demand (76 new clients in April and May). 

• Loss of health funding for one client at Rig Drive (+£33k).   

• Increase in demand for Direct Payments (+ 10 clients), forecast 
overspend (+£174k). 

• Underspend on Community Support contracts (-£60k) as clients move 
to a direct payment. 

• Initial forecast overspend on Residential and Nursing care due to 
additional placements and less than anticipated income from Health.  

 

Page 6



 

 
This is offset by slippage in developing alternatives to residential 
provision (-£389k).  

 
Adults Safeguarding (-£2k) 

 

• Slight underspend on employee budgets. 
 

Supporting People (£-133k) 
 

• Efficiency savings on subsidy contracts due to a reduction in activity 
plus outcome of contract negotiations. 

 
 
7.1.3 Agency and Consultancy 
 

Total expenditure on Agency staff for Adult Services for the period ending 
May 2012 was £40,376 (none of which was off contract). This compares with 
an actual cost of £40,050 for the same period last year (of which £1,750 was 
off contract). Primarily, these costs were in respect of assessment and care 
management staff to cover vacancies and sickness.   
 
There has been no expenditure on consultancy to-date. 

 
 
7.1.4 Non contractual Overtime 
 

Actual expenditure to the end of May 2012 on non-contractual overtime for 
Adult Services was £40,580 compared with expenditure of £49,884 for the 
same period last year. 
 
The actual costs of both Agency and non contractual overtime are included 
within the financial forecasts. 
 

7.2 Current Action  
 

To mitigate any further financial pressures within the service, budget meetings 
and budget clinics are held with Service Directors and managers on a regular  
basis to monitor financial performance and further examine significant 
variations against the  approved budget to  ensure expenditure remains  
within  the cash limited budget by the end of the financial year.  

 
 
8.  Finance 
 

Finance details are included in section 7 above and the attached appendix 
shows a summary of the overall financial projection for each main client group 
together with the main reasons for variation.  

 
 

Page 7



 

 
9.  Risks and Uncertainties 
  

Careful scrutiny of expenditure and income and close budget monitoring 
remains essential to ensure equity of service provision for adults across the 
Borough within existing budgets particularly where the demand and spend is 
difficult to predict in such a volatile social care market. 
Any future reductions in continuing health care funding would have a 
significant impact on residential and domiciliary care budgets across Adult 
Social Care.  

 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 

 
The delivery of Adult Services within its approved cash limit is vital to 
achieving the objectives of the Council and the CSCI Outcomes Framework 
for Performance Assessment of Adult Social Care. Financial performance is 
also a key element within the assessment of the Council’s overall 
performance.   

     
11.  Background Papers and Consultation 
 

• Report to Cabinet on 22 February 2012 –Proposed Revenue Budget and 
Council Tax for 2012/13.   

• The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2011-2014. 
 
This report has been discussed with the Strategic Director of Neighbourhoods 
and Adult Services, the Director of Health and Well Being and the Director of 
Financial Services. 
 
 

Contact Name: Mark Scarrott – Finance Manager  (Neighbourhoods and Adult 
Services), Financial Services x 22007, email Mark.Scarrott@rotherham.gov.uk. 

Page 8



Agenda Item 7 Page 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 8 Page 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 9 Page 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 26
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 28
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



P
a

g
e
 3

0B
y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

(s
) 3

, 4
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e

d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7
2

.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 25th June, 2012.
	5 Adult Services Revenue Budget Monitoring Report - 2012-13.
	7 Review of Enabling Service.
	RO121 attachement Enabling Services Business plan2

	8 Day Service Review Proposals - Learning Disability Services.
	9 Day Service Review Proposals - Transport Services.
	RO123 b_ Appendix 1_Eligibility criteria new
	RO123 d_Transport Assessment Form new
	RO123 c_Day Services Review Communication Plan new


